I. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR 

The circuit court erred by concluding that it lacked personal jurisdiction over Prepared 

Insurance Company, a foreign corporation, organized under the law of the State of Florida, based 

on its incorrect findings that (1) Prepared was not subject to West Virginia's long arm 

jurisdiction; and (2) that the exercise ofpersonal jurisdiction over Prepared would not comport 

with federal due process. 
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II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The Petitioners, Bruce and Holly Unser (collectively the "Petitioners"), are residents of 

the State ofFlorida. See Third-Party Defendants' Amended Answer to the Third-Party 

Complaint and Fourth-Party Complaint at ml36, 37, J.A. at p 184. The Respondent, Prepared 

Insurance Company ("Prepared"), is a foreign corporation organized under the laws of the state 

ofFlorida with a principal address located in Tampa, Florida. Id. at ~ 39, J.A. at 184. 

On or about August 21, 2011, the Petitioners contracted with Prepared for insurance 

coverage (Home Owners Policy), which included a provision for liability coverage and an 

effective date of September 5, 2011. See, Prepared Insurance Company Policy (the "Policy"), 

Coverage E.-Personal Liability, J.A. at pp. 241-299. On June 29 2012, the Petitioners' minor 

daughter, Kylie Unser, was injured while riding a bicycle on Defendant, American-Canadian 

Expeditions, Ltd.'s ("ACE") property near Oak Hill, Fayette County, West Virginia. See Third

Party Defendants' Amended Answer to Third-Party Complaint and Fourth-Party Complaint 

(Fourth-Party Compl.) ~~ 46-47, at J.A. at pp. 185, 186. Mr. Unser filed suit on his daughter's 

behalf and ACE countersued and brought a Third-Party Complaint against the Unsers. See 

ACE's Third-Party Complaint, J.A. at p. 151. Specifically, ACE seeks, among things, to hold the 

Petitioner's vicariously and directly liable for the injuries sustained by Kylie. Id. 

Petitioners sought a defense and coverage under the Policy. However, Prepared denied 

coverage. See Fourth-Party Compl. ~ 52, J.A. at 186. However, Prepared issued a letter to 

Petitioners dated September 2,2014, denying defense and coverage. See Prepared Letter to 

Petitioners dated 9/2/14 at J.A. at 238. In addition, Prepared issued a letter to Petitioner's West 

Virginia counsel dated September 4, 2014, denying defense and coverage. See Prepared Letter 

to Counsel dated 9/4114, J .A. at p. 236. 
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In each letter Prepared sets forth it reasons for denying defense and coverage. 

Importantly, Prepared did not assert as a basis for denial of coverage that the claim involved an 

occurrence, accident, or injury outside the state of Florida. To this end, the Policy does not 

contain such a limitation to coverage. 

The Petitioners filed the Fourth-Party Complaint to enforce their rights under the Policy. 

See Forth-Party Complaint, J.A. at p. 184. Prepared then filed their Motion and Memo, alleging 

lack ofpersonal jurisdiction. See Prepared's Motion and Memo Seeking Dismissal, l.A. at 300. 

By an Order entered on October 5, 2015, the circuit court agreed with Prepared and dismissed 

the Petitioner's Fourth-Party Complaint for lack ofpersonal jurisdiction. See Order Granting 

Forth-Party Defendant, Prepared Insurance Company's Motion to Dismiss Fourth-Party 

Complaint, J .A. at 318. By an Order entered on November 16, 2015, the circuit court clarified 

that the aforementioned dismissal order was a final order. See Order, J.A. at p. 326. 

The Petitioners now appeal. 
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III. SUMMARY OF THE ARGUEMENT 


Prepared is subject to the personal jurisdiction of this state because (1) it is subject to two 

different West Virginia long arm statutes; and (2) and the assertion ofpersonal jurisdiction over 

Prepared by the Circuit Court of Fayette County, West Virginia, comports with federal due 

process. 

First, Prepared is subject to the long arm statute set forth within W. Va. Code § 33-44-5 

of the West Virginia Unauthorized Insurers Act because Prepared transacted insurance within 

this state by adjustment of the Petitioner's claim within this state subsequent to the effectuation 

of the insurance contract and arising out of it. 

Second, Prepared Insurance Company is subject to the long arm statute within W. Va. 

Code § 56-3-33(a) because it contracted to insure the Petitioners for risks located in this state at 

the time of the issuance of the Policy, and because its insured, the Petitioners, allegedly caused 

tortuous injury any act or omission in this state. 

Finally, the exercise ofpersonal jurisdiction over Prepared complies with federal due 

process because its minimum contacts with this state were sufficient from which it could 

anticipate being haled into a court in this state. 
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IV. STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT AND DECISION 

The petitioner does believe oral argument is necessary. 
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v. ARGUMENT 

Standard of Review. 

The standard by which the ruling of the circuit court is to be reviewed is whether the 

Petitioners made a prima facie showing ofpersonal or in personam jurisdiction over Prepared 

sufficient to withstand the motion to dismiss. See Griffith v. Fanners, 215 W.Va. 428,599 

S.E.2d 851, 853 (2004). "In that regard, the allegations and inferences in the record are to be 

viewed in favor of such jurisdiction." Id. 599 S.E.2d at p. 853 quoting syl. pt. 4, Easterling v. 

American Optical Corporation, 207 W.Va. 123, 127,529 S.E.2d 588, 592 (2000). 

A. 	 THE EXERCISE OF PERSONAL JURISDICTION IS PROPER UNDER 
WEST VIRGINIA LONG ARM STATUTES 

This Court adopted the following two step process to detennine if the exercise of 

jurisdiction over a foreign corporation is appropriate: 

A court must use a two-step approach when analyzing whether personal 
jurisdiction exists over a foreign corporation or other nonresident. The first step 
involves detennining whether the defendant's actions satisfy our personal 
jurisdiction statutes set forth in W. Va. Code, 31-1-15 [1984] and W. Va. Code, 56-3
33 [1984]. The second step involves detennining whether the defendant's contacts 
with the forum state satisfy federal due process. 

Abbott v. Owens-Corning Fiberglas Corporation, syl. pt. 5, 191 W.Va. 198,444 S.E.2d 285 

(1994). 

b. 	 West Virginia Code § 33-44-5(a) 

Long ann jurisdiction over Prepared is appropriate und~ W. Va. Code § 33-44-5 of the 

Unauthorized Insurers Act. Sub-paragraph (a) of this provision states as follows: 

(a) Any act of transacting insurance by any unauthorized insurer is equivalent to 
and constitutes an irrevocable appointment by an unauthorized insurer, binding 
upon him or her, his or her executor or administrator, or successor in interest, of 
the secretary of state or his or her successor in office, to be the true and lawful 
attorney ofan unauthorized insurer upon whom may be served all lawful process 
in any action, suit or proceeding in any court by the commissioner, the state or an 
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insured and upon whom may be served any notice, order, pleading or process in 
any proceeding before the commissioner and which arises out of transacting an 
insurance business in this state by such an insurer. Any act of transacting 
insurance in this state by any unauthorized insurer or any person acting in 
furtherance of an unauthorized insurer's business, signifies the agreement of the 
person or unauthorized insurer that any lawful process in such a court action, suit 
or proceeding or any notice, order, pleading or process in an administrative 
proceeding before the commissioner so served is of the same legal force and 
validity as personal service or process in this state upon an insurer. 

Under W. Va. Code § 33-44-3(P)(7), the term "transaction of insurance" includes the 

following: 

The dissemination ofinformation as to coverage or rates, or forwarding of 
applications, or delivery ofpolicies or contracts, or inspection ofrisks, the fixing 
ofrates or investigation or adjustment ofclaims or losses or the transaction of 
matters subsequent to effectuation ofthe contract and arising out ofit, or any 
other manner ofrepresenting or assisting a person or insurer in the transaction of 
insurance with respect to any risk or exposure located or to be performed in this 
state; 

ACE seeks to hold the Petitioners vicariously and directly liable for the damages 

sustained by their daughter relating to a bicycle accident in Fayette County, West Virginia. The 

Petitioners sought a defense and coverage regarding this accident under their Policy with 

Prepared. Prepared denied coverage. Prepared issued a letter to the Petitioners dated September 

2,2014, denying defense and coverage. In addition, Prepared issued a letter to the Petitioner's 

West Virginia counsel dated September 4,2014, denying defense and coverage. 

Importantly, the foregoing acts by Prepared constitute the investigation or adjustment of 

claims or losses or the transaction ofmatters subsequent to the effectuation ofthe insurance 

contract and arising out ofit. Consequently, Prepared is clearly subject to the long arm 

jurisdiction of this State by virtue ofW. Va. Code § 33-44-5. 
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b. West Virginia Code W. Va. Code § 56-3-33 

The exercise ofjurisdiction over Prepared is also appropriate under W. Va. Code § 56-3

33, West Virginia's general long ann statue. W. Va. Code § 56-3-33(a) & (b) states as follows: 

(a) The engaging by a nonresident, or by his or her duly authorized agent, in any 
one or more of the acts specified in subdivisions (1) through (7) of this subsection 
shall be deemed equivalent to an appointment by such nonresident of the 
Secretary of State, or his or her successor in office, to be his or her true and lawful 
attorney upon whom may be served all lawful process in any action or proceeding 
against him or her, in any circuit court in this state, including an action or 
proceeding brought by a nonresident plaintiff or plaintiffs, for a cause of action 
arising from or growing out of such act or acts, and the engaging in such act or 
acts shall be a signification of such nonresident's agreement that any such process 
against him or her, which is served in the manner hereinafter provided, shall be of 
the same legal force and validity as though such nonresident were personally 
served with a summons and complaint within this state: 

(1) Transacting any business in this state; 

(2) Contracting to supply services or things in this state; 

(3) Causing tortious injury by an act or omission in this state; 

(4) Causing tortious injury in this state by an act or omission outside this state if 
he or she regularly does or solicits business, or engages in any other persistent 
course of conduct, or derives substantial revenue from goods used or consumed or 
services rendered in this state; 

(5) Causing injury in this state to any person by breach of warranty expressly or 
impliedly made in the sale of goods outside this state when he or she might 
reasonably have expected such person to use, consume or be affected by the 
goods in this state: Provided, That he or she also regularly does or solicits 
business, or engages in any other persistent course of conduct, or derives 
substantial revenue from goods used or consumed or services rendered in this 
state; 

(6) Having an interest in, using or possessing real property in this state; or 

(7) Contracting to insure any person, property or risk located within this state at 
the time of contracting. 

(b) When jurisdiction over a nonresident is based solely upon the provisions of 
this section, only a cause ofaction arising from or growing out ofone or more of 
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the acts specified in subdivisions (1) through (7), subsection (a) of this section 
may be asserted against him or her. 

The Petitioners assert that Prepared is subject to the long arm jurisdiction of this state via 

subdivisions (3) & (7). ACE alleges, among other things, that the Petitioners are both 

vicariously liable and directly negligent for their daughter's injuries. Clearly the alleged actions 

or inactions of Prepared's very own insured meet the requirement ofcausing tortuous injury by 

an act or omission in this state, and it is these alleged actions or inactions that form the basis of 

Petitioner's Fourth-Party Complaint against Prepared. Accordingly, long arm jurisdiction is 

proper under W. Va. Code § 56-3-33(a)(3). 

Long arm jurisdiction is also appropriate under W. Va. Code § 56-3-33(a)(7), because 

Prepared contracted to insure any person, property or risk located within this state at the time of 

contracting. 

The Policy states in pertinent part that: 

If a claim is made or a suit is brought against an "insured" for damages because of 
"bodily injury"] .... caused by an "occurrence,,2 to which this 
coverage applies, we will: 

1. 	 Pay up to our limit of liability for the damages for which our "insured" is 
legally liable .... , and 

2. 	 Provide a defense at our expense by counsel ofour choice, even if the suit is 
groundless, false or fraudulenL.. 

See Policy at p. 12, J.A. at p. 119. 

The Policy further contains a comprehensive list of Exclusions, but out-of-state liability 

claims are not specifically excluded. Policy at p. 12, J.A. at pp. 119-122. Moreover, nowhere in 

1 'Bodily rryury' means bodily hann, sickness, or disease, including required care, loss of services and death, that 
results." Policy at p. 1, l.A. at p. 82 .. 
2 '''Occurrence' mans an accident, including continuous or repeated exposure to substantially the same general 
harmful conditions, which results during the policy period, in: a. 'bodily rryury,' or b. 'property damage.'" Policy at 
1, l.A. at p. 82. 
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the Policy does it state that out-of-state lawsuits will not be covered or defended. See Policy, 

J.A. at 241. 

Additionally, Prepared, itself, does not appear to be confined exclusively to Florida. The 

Policy itself bears a Montana address. See Id. Further, the Policy contains a "Special Provisions 

for Florida" section and a Hurricane endorsement specifically for Florida. See Id. In other 

words, Prepared appears to write policies for risks in states other than Florida, which would 

include West Virginia. 

Otherwise, why would it have a Florida endorsement? Likewise, why should it then be 

surprised that an insured has been sued, and, therefore, needs defended and provided coverage, in 

another state? Such a scenario could be reasonably anticipated and/or foreseeable given the ease 

of travel within the continental United States and Prepared's own business practices. Moreover, 

Prepared, who had exclusive control in drafting the Policy, could have easily included exclusions 

or conditions to coverage under the Policy which would have limited suit to Florida. It did not. 

In sum, Prepared contracted to insure the Petitioners and a risk located in West Virginia 

and other states at the time ofthe contracting, and the Petitioners' declaratory judgment action 

directly relates to this contract. Consequently, Prepared is subject to the long arm jurisdiction of 

this state. 

B. 	 THE EXERICES OF PERSONAL JURISDICTION COMPORTS WITH 
FEDERAL DUE PROCESS 

Minimum contacts do exist to establish personal jurisdiction in this case and such 

jurisdiction was foreseeable by Prepared. In recognizing a "minimum contacts" jurisdictional 

standard, the West Virginia Supreme Court has stated that "'[t]he critical element for 

determining mininlUm contacts is not the volume of activity but rather "the quality and nature of 

the activity in relation to the fair and orderly administration of the laws. Easterling v. American 
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Optical Corporation, 529 S.E.2d 588, 595 (W.Va. 2000) (quoting International Shoe Co. V. 

Washington, 66 S.Ct. 154, 160 (1945». Further, "forseeability is a necessary element in 

detennining whether a defendant's contacts satisfy due process." Easterling, 529 S.E.2nd at 595. 

In other words, the '''defendant's conduct and connection with the forum State are such that [it] 

should reasonably anticipate being haled into court there. '" Id. (quoting Hill by Hill v. Showa 

Denko, K.K, 425 S.E.2d 609,612 (W.Va. 1992) and World-Wide Volkswagon Corp. V. 

Woodson, 100 S.Ct. 559, 567 (1980». 

In this case, there is no doubt that Prepared could foresee being haled into court in West 

Virginia and the other states. As explained above, the Policy language coverage appears to apply 

to risks, injuries, or accidents outside ofFlorida. The accident and injuries at issue arise from 

acts or omissions allegedly occurring in Fayette County, West Virginia. The Petitioners and 

ACE were present in Fayette County for the acts or omissions at issue. It is these alleged 

acts/omissions by Prepared's insured along with the Policy language which create the requisite 

contacts with West Virginia. The Petitioners merely are seeking a defense and coverage for said 

acts under the Policy. 

In a similar case involving foreign automobile liability insurance carrier the United States 

Court ofAppeals for the Fourth Circuit in Rossman v. State Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance, 

832 F.2d 282 (4th Cir. 1987), applying federal due process principles concluded that the exercise 

ofpersonal jurisdiction over a foreign automobile liability insurance carrier by the District Court 

for the Eastern District ofVirginia was proper. The court reasoned that automobile liability 

policies are typically sued upon where the accident takes place as contrasted to health insurance 

policies that is typically sued upon where the insured resides. Due to this known mobility factor 

associated with automobile liability policies coupled with the fact that the foregoing automobile 
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insurance carrier did not exclude coverage to accidents outside of the state of Illinois, the court 

determined that the foreign insurance carrier could reasonably anticipate being haled into court 

in the state ofVirginia, and that minimum contacts existed. 

That although the Policy in this case is called a home owners policy appears to apply to 

acts and omissions away from the home like typical home owners policies. Likewise, Prepared 

did not exclude its coverage to risks, accidents and injuries outside of Florida. Accordingly, due 

to this applicable mobility factor along with Prepared's failure to exclude coverage to accidents 

outside of Florida, Prepared could have reasonable anticipated being haled into a court in this 

state or any other state. Consequently, minimum contacts exists and jurisdiction is proper based 

on federal due process. 

VI. CONCLUSION 

The Petitioner requests that this Court reverse the decision of the circuit court and remand 

this matter back to circuit court with instructions that the Fourth-Party Complaint be reinstated. 

The Petitioners further request their reasonable attorney fees and costs for having to prosecute 

this matter. 

Signed_....L-_----'__---. 

Tim C. Carrico 
West Virginia Bar ID 6771 
Counsel ofRecord for Petitioners