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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT 


Petitioners have brought an action in the Circuit Court of Fayette County seeking 

coverage under their Florida homeowners' policy. The relevant inquiry here is not 

whether coverage exists, but whether West Virginia courts have personal jurisdiction 

over Prepared such that the action may properly be brought in West Virginia rather than 

Florida, where both Petitioners and Prepared are residents. Because neither West 

Virginia's long-arm statute nor federal due process permit the Circuit Court of Fayette 

County to exercise personal jurisdiction over Prepared, Petitioners' Fourth Party 

Complaint was properly dismissed. 

This Court has articulated a two-part test to determine whether a circuit court has 

personal jurisdiction over a foreign corporation such as Prepared: 

The first step involves determining whether the defendant's actions satisfy 
our personal jurisdiction statutes set forth in W. Va. Code § 31-1-15 and 
W. Va. Code § 56-3-33. The second step involves determining whether 
the defendant's contacts with the forum state satisfy federal due process. 

Syl. Pt. 5, Abbott v. Owens-Coming Fiberglass Corp., 191 W. Va. 198,444 S.E.2d 285 

(1994). 

West Virginia's long-arm statute does not bring Prepared within the personal 

jurisdiction of the Circuit Court of Fayette County, which specifically limits the exercise 

of personal jurisdiction to claims arising out of a defendant's contacts with the forum 

state. The allegations in the Fourth Party Complaint demonstrate that Petitioners' 

action against Prepared arises out of a Florida homeowners' policy issued by a Florida 

insurer to Florida residents. Furthermore, the Fourth Party Complaint fails to allege any 

contacts by Prepared with West Virginia. Accordingly, the long-arm statute does not 

confer personal jurisdiction over Prepared in West Virginia. 
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The exercise of personal jurisdiction over Prepared in this matter would also 

violate Prepared's due process rights. Prepared is a Florida corporation with a principal 

place of business in Florida and is not licensed to transact business in West Virginia. 

Moreover, it has made no contacts with West Virginia that relate to Petitioners' 

declaratory judgment claim against it, or any other contacts. Rather, it contracted to 

insure Petitioners' home at 15705 Rolling Meadows Circle, Wellington, Florida, 33414

9050, (J.A. at 74), pursuant to a policy in a form approved by the Florida Office of 

Insurance Regulation. Accordingly, Prepared reasonably anticipated that any suit 

regarding that Florida homeowners' policy would be brought in Florida. As such, 

personal jurisdiction over Prepared is improper under the second prong as well. 
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STATEMENT REGARDING ORAL ARGUMENT 


This matter does not involve any novel questions of law or complex factual 

issues for which oral argument would be helpful. Accordingly, Respondent requests 

that this appeal be decided on the briefs. 
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ARGUMENT 


The sole question before the Court is not whether coverage exists, but whether 

West Virginia courts have personal jurisdiction over Prepared such that Prepared may 

be required to defend Petitioners' coverage action in West Virginia, as opposed to 

Florida. Because the insurance policy at issue is a Florida policy issued by a Florida 

insurer to Florida residents to cover a dwelling located in Florida, and because Prepared 

has made no contacts in West Virginia which would confer personal jurisdiction over it in 

West Virginia, personal jurisdiction is not proper here. 

This Court has articulated a two-part test to determine whether a circuit court has 

personal jurisdiction over a foreign corporation such as Prepared: 

The first step involves determining whether the defendant's actions satisfy 
our personal jurisdiction statutes set forth in W. Va. Code § 31-1-15 and 
W. Va. Code § 56-3-33. The second step involves determining whether 
the defendant's contacts with the forum state satisfy federal due process. 

Syl. Pt. 5, Abbott v. Owens-Corning Fiberglass Corp., 191 W. Va. 198,444 S.E.2d 285 

(1994)? It was the Unsers' burden to make a prima facie showing that the exercise of 

personal jurisdiction is proper under both prongs. Syl. Pt. 2, Bowers v. Wurzburg, 202 

W.va. 43, 501 S.E.2d 479 (1998). "Appellate review of a circuit court's order granting a 

motion to dismiss a complaint is de novo." Syl. Pt. 2, State ex reI. McGraw v. Scott 

Runyan Pontiac-Buick, 194 W. Va. 770,461 S.E.2d 516 (1995). 

Here, the Circuit Court dismissed the Fourth Party Complaint because the 

Unsers failed to make a prima facie showing that either of the requirements for 

establishing personal jurisdiction had been met. Reviewing that dismissal under a de 

novo standard, this Court should affirm the dismissal. 

3 West Virginia Code § 31-1-15 was repealed in 2002, leaving § 56-3-33 as the only applicable statute. 
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I. 	 West Virginia's Long-Arm Statute Does Not Permit the Exercise of 
Personal Jurisdiction Over Prepared. 

In applying the long-arm statute, W. Va. Code § 56-3-33, it "must be read in 

conjunction with the constitutional due process concept that a foreign corporation must 

have certain 'minimum contacts' before it is amenable to personal jurisdiction in our 

courts." Kidwell v. Westinghouse Elec. Co., 178 W. Va. 161, 162,358 S.E.2d 420, 421 

(1986). Those minimum contacts must be sufficient such that the "maintenance of an 

action in the forum does not offend traditional notions of fair play and substantial 

justice." Syl. Pt. 1, Hodge v. Sands Mfg. Co., 151 W. Va. 133, 150 S.E.2d 793 (1966). 

"[T]he critical element for determining minimum contacts is not the volume of activity but 

rather 'the quality and nature of the activity in relation to the fair and orderly 

administration of the laws.'" Norfolk S. Ry. Co. v. Maynard, 190 W. Va. 113, 116,437 

S.E.2d 277, 280 (1993) (quoting Int'I Shoe Co. v. Washington, 326 U.S. 310, 319 

(1945». "To what extent a nonresident defendant has minimum contacts with the forum 

state depends on the facts of the individual case. One essential inquiry is whether the 

defendant has purposefully acted to obtain benefits or privileges in the forum state." 

Syl. Pt. 3, Pries v. Watt, 186 W. Va. 49, 410 S.E.2d 285 (1991). "[T]he foreseeability 

that is critical to due process analysis . . . is that the defendant's conduct and 

connection with the forum State are such that he should reasonably anticipated being 

haled into court there." Hill ex rei. Hill v. Showa Denko, K.K., 188 W. Va. 654, 657, 425 

S.E.2d 609, 612 (1992) (quoting World-Wide Volkswagen Corp. v. Woodson, 444 U.S. 

286,297(1980». 

A. West Virginia Code § 33-44-5 

Petitioners argue - for the first time on appeal - that Prepared's denial of 
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Petitioners' claim for defense and coverage regarding ACE's third party claims against 

them, including the transmission of a denial letter to Petitioners' counsel in West 

Virginia, constitutes "the investigation or adjustment of claims" such that jurisdiction is 

proper under W. Va. Code § 33-44-5. Because this argument was not raised below, it is 

waived. See Clint Hurt & Assocs. v. Rare Earth Energy, Inc., 198 W. Va. 320, 329,480 

S.E.2d 529, 538 (1996) ("[T]heories raised for the first time on appeal are not 

considered."). Even assuming that the argument may properly now be considered, 

however, it fails to establish that the Circuit Court had personal jurisdiction over 

Prepared. 

First, W. Va. Code § 33-44-5 applies to "[a]ny act of transacting insurance by any 

unauthorized insurer." Importantly, there has been no allegation or finding that 

Prepared is an "unauthorized insurer" to which this section would apply, and, moreover, 

Prepared was not served with the summons or Fourth Party Compliant in this matter via 

the Secretary of State. Accordingly, this section does not operate to confer personal 

jurisdiction over Prepared in West Virginia. 

Second, under W. Va. Code § 33-44-3(p)(7), the denial of coverage under a 

Florida homeowners' policy and transmission of a letter to Petitioners' counsel in West 

Virginia stating the reasons for that denial do not constitute the "investigation or 

adjustment of claims or losses" in West Virginia. Moreover, the statute clearly 

contemplates that any such "investigation or adjustment" be performed pursuant to an 

insurance contract previously made in West Virginia. Here, no such contract was 

previously made in West Virginia under which Prepared might later investigate or adjust 

claims or losses. Rather, the policy at issue was issued in Florida to Florida residents, 
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and any investigation or adjustment of claims under that policy occurred in Florida. 

It would be patently unjust for Prepared to be found to be an "unauthorized 

insurer" in West Virginia, and thus subject to personal jurisdiction here, for having 

properly responded to Petitioners' claim under their Florida homeowners' policy and 

having transmitted a letter to Petitioners' counsel in West Virginia regarding that claim, 

particularly when the Petitioners - not Prepared - set in motion the acts giving rise to 

their claim by suing ACE in West Virginia. 

Finally, even if Prepared's actions did constitute the "transaction of insurance" 

under this definition, the definition is limited to the "purposes of this article." Thus, it is 

clear that the language of the long-arm statutes, and not the language of Article 44 of 

Chapter 33 which address unauthorized insurers, that controls the question of personal 

jurisdiction. 

In sum, W. Va. Code § 33-44-5 is inapposite to the issue of personal jurisdiction 

over Prepared and, even if it could apply to effectuate jurisdiction, Prepared did not 

engage in any "investigation or adjustment" of Petitioners' claims in West Virginia to 

invoke that application. Accordingly, the Circuit Court did not have personal jurisdiction 

over Prepared pursuant to W. Va. Code § 33-.44-5. 

B. West Virginia Code § 56-3-33 

To satisfy the long-arm statute, the Unsers must demonstrate that Prepared 

conducted one or more of the following activities in West Virginia: 

(1) Transacting any business in this State;4 

4 Pursuant to West Virginia Code §31D-15-1501(d), a foreign corporation is deemed to transact 
business in West Virginia if: (1) the corporation makes a contract to be performed, in whole or in part, by 
any party thereto in this state; (2) the corporation commits a tort, in whole or in part, in this state; or (3) the 
corporation manufactures, sells, offers for sale or supplies any product in a defective condition and that 
product causes injury to any person or property within this state notwithstanding the fact that the 
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(2) 	 Contracting to supply services or things in this State; 

(3) 	 Causing tortious injury by an act or omission in this State; 

(4) 	 Causing tortious injury in this State by an act or omission outside 
this State if he or she regularly does or solicits business, or 
engages in any other persistent course of conduct, or derives 
sUbstantial revenue from goods used or consumed or services 
rendered in this State; 

(5) 	 Causing injury in this State to any person by breach of warranty 
expressly or impliedly made in the sale of goods outside this State 
when he or she might reasonably have expected such person to 
use, consumer or be affected by the goods in this State: Provided, 
that he or she also regularly does or solicits business, or engages 
in any other persistent course of conduct, or derives sUbstantial 
revenue from goods used or consumed or services rendered in this 
State; 

(6) 	 Having an interest in, using or possessing real property in this 
State; or 

(7) 	 Contracting to insure any person, property or risk located within this 
State at the time of contracting. 

W. Va. Code § 56-3-33(a). Petitioners posit that Prepared is subject to personal 

jurisdiction under subsections (3) and (7), and that the Circuit Court erred by failing to 

find that jurisdiction was proper under either provision. 5 

Petitioners first assert that Prepared is subject to jurisdiction under § 56-3

33(a)(3) because Petitioners are alleged to have caused tortious injury by act or 

omission in West Virginia. Contrary to Petitioners' assertion, however, the statute 

requires that the tortious injury in West Virginia be caused by the nonresident over 

corporation had no agents, servants or employees or contacts within this state at the time of the injury. 
This provision is intended to supplement West Virginia's long-arm statute - not to replace it. Griffith & 
Cae Adver., Inc. v. Farmers & Merchs. Bank & Trust, 215 W. Va. 428, 431, 599 S.E.2d 851, 854 (2004). 
5 The additional requirement that the enumerated conduct also form the basis for the lawsuit appears not 
to be at issue here. See W. Va. Code § 56-3-33(b) ("When jurisdiction over a nonresident is based solely 
upon the provisions of this section, only a cause of action arising from or growing out of one or more of 
the acts specified in subdivisions (1) through (7), subsection (a) of this section may be asserted against 
him or her."). 
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whom jurisdiction is to be asserted. In this instance, that nonresident is Prepared, not 

Petitioners. And, contrary to Petitioners' assertion, their own actions or inactions do not 

"form the basis of Pertitioners' Fourth-Party Complaint against Prepared." (Pet. Br. at 

11.) Rather, it is Prepared's denial of coverage under Petitioners' Florida homeowners' 

policy which forms the basis of Petitioners' declaratory judgment claim against Prepared 

- a claim that sounds in contract law, not tort law. As such, Prepared itself has 

engaged in no conduct whatsoever - allegedly tortious or otherwise - which would give 

rise to personal jurisdiction under this section. 

Petitioners next assert that personal jurisdiction may be found as to Prepared 

because under § 56-3-33(a)(7), Prepared allegedly "[contracted] to insure [a] person, 

property or risk located within this State at the time of contracting." Despite the 

undisputed facts that the homeowners' policy at issue was issued by a Florida company 

to Florida residents to cover a dwelling in Florida at 15705 Rolling Meadows Circle, 

Wellington, Florida, 33414-9050, pursuant to a policy in a form approved by the Florida 

Office of Insurance Regulation, Petitioners maintain that at the time it was issued, the 

policy insured a risk in West Virginia. In support of that argument, Petitioners advance 

several unavailing theories. 

First, Petitioners contend that because out-of-state liability claims are not 

specifically excluded by the policy, the risk of the insureds being sued in West Virginia 

was covered. It must be emphasized that the relevant inquiry here is not whether 

coverage exists, but whether Prepared may be called into court in West Virginia, rather 

than Florida, to answer Petitioners' complaint seeking coverage. Substantively, as a 

threshold matter, the fact that certain risks are not expressly excluded by the policy 
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language is of no moment. It is only after a risk is found to be within the policy's 

insuring language that exclusionary language operates to remove otherwise-insured 

risks from coverage. Even if the lack of exclusionary language were relevant to this 

inquiry, however, there is simply no evidence that at the time it issued a Florida 

homeowners' policy in Florida to Florida residents, Prepared contracted to cover any 

risk in West Virginia. Rather, at the time Petitioners' Florida homeowners' policy was 

issued, the persons (Petitioners), property (Petitioners' residence and other property 

covered by the policy), and risks (claims made or suits brought against Petitioners for 

damages because of bodily injury or property damage caused by an "occurrence" to 

which coverage applies) were all located in Florida, not West Virginia. 

Second, Petitioners maintain that because Prepared does business in other 

states besides Florida, it intended to cover risks of loss in West Virginia. This theory, 

however, runs contrary to the requirements set forth in § 56-3-33(a)(7) and (b), which 

require the risk of loss to be in West Virginia at the time of contracting and that the 

instant suit arise out of that contract. Accordingly, whatever business Prepared may 

transact in states other than Florida, that business does not form the basis of this suit 

such that Prepared may be subject to personal jurisdiction in West Virginia. Indeed, 

Prepared is not licensed to transact business in West Virginia and has not engaged in 

any conduct related to Petitioners' Florida homeowners' policy or otherwise which would 

subject Prepared to the jurisdiction of West Virginia courts. 

Taking Petitioners' position to its logical conclusion would mean that by issuing a 

Florida homeowners' policy to Florida residents to cover a dwelling located in Florida, it 

contracted to insure a risk of loss in every state at that time and may be subject to 
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personal jurisdiction in every state, regardless of whether coverage actually exists. That 

result would be absurd, and would violate the traditional notions of fair play and 

substantial justice required by the Due Process Clause. Accordingly, Prepared cannot 

reasonably be said to have contracted to insure a risk of loss in West Virginia at the 

time it issued the Florida homeowners' policy at issue to Florida residents, and the 

Circuit Court properly found that it lacked personal jurisdiction over Prepared. 

II. 	 The Exercise of Personal Jurisdiction Over Prepared Would Violate 
Prepared's Due Process Rights. 

Turning to the second prong of the two part test set forth in Syllabus Point 5 of 

Abbott, 191 W. Va. 198,444 S.E.2d 285, Prepared's contacts with West Virginia fail to 

satisfy federal due process. Although International Shoe and World-Wide Volkswagen, 

supra, are still controlling law in this area, the Supreme Court of the United States has 

recently clarified the application of the principles originally articulated in those cases in 

Goodyear Dunlop Tires Operations, S.A. v. Brown, 131 S. Ct. 2846 (2011), and J. 

McIntyre Machinery, Ltd. v. Nicastro, 131 S. Ct. 2780 (2011). Accordingly, it is the 

Supreme Court's more recent application of International Shoe and World-Wide 

Volkswagen that provide the current framework to evaluate federal due process. 

A plaintiff may satisfy the due process requirement by showing that the court can 

exercise either "general" or "specific" jurisdiction over the non-resident defendant. 

Nicastro, 131 S. Ct. at 2787-88. General jurisdiction only is available where the 

defendant is "at home" in the forum state. Goodyear, 131 S. Ct. 2846, 2853-54 ("for an 

individual, the paradigm forum for the exercise of general jurisdiction is the individual's 

domicile; for a corporation, it is an equivalent place, one in which the corporation is fairly 

regarded as at home"). In the absence of general jurisdiction, specific jurisdiction is 
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available only in limited circumstances where the lawsuit is related to the defendant's 

contacts with the forum state. Nicastro, 131 S. Ct. at 2787. In light of these two United 

States Supreme Court decisions limiting state courts' ability to exercise general and 

specific jurisdiction, the Circuit Court properly found that it lacked personal jurisdiction 

over Prepared. 

A. 	 The Circuit Court Properly Found That It Lacked General 
Jurisdiction Over Prepared Because Prepared Is Not "At 
Home" in West Virginia. 

General jurisdiction exists only where the defendant essentially is "at home" in 

the forum state. Goodyear, 131 S. Ct. at 2846.

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